
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date and Time 
 

Tuesday, 3rd June, 2025 at 10.00 am. 

Venue 
 

The Wykeham Suite, Winchester Wessex Hotel (formerly the 
Mercure), Paternoster Row, Winchester, SO23 9LQ 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   To confirm a Chairperson for the meeting  
 

2.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Councillors or Officers in matters 

to be discussed. 
 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs), other registerable interests (ORIs) and non-
registerable interests (NRIs) in accordance with the Council’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

3.   Temporary Event Notice for Main beer tent at MXGP, Matterley Bowl, 
Alresford Road Winchester (Report LR595) (Pages 5 - 24) 
 

4.   Temporary Event Notice for Event arena daytime relief bar at MXGP, 
Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR596) (Pages 25 - 
44) 
 

5.   Temporary Event Notice for Relief bar in paddock area, Matterley Bowl, 
Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR597) (Pages 45 - 64) 
 

6.   Temporary Event Notice for Evening entertainment area Matterley Bowl, 
Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR598) (Pages 65 - 84) 
 

7.   Temporary Event Notice for VIP Hospitality Marquee, Matterley Bowl, 
Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR599) (Pages 85 - 104) 
 

 
Laura Taylor 

Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack



23 May 2025 
 
Agenda Contact: David Blakemore, Democratic Services Team Manager 
Tel: 01962 848 217   Email: dblakemore@winchester.gov.uk 
 
The Membership of the Sub-Committee will be: 
 
Councillors Wallace, Cunningham and Morris 
 
Reserve 
 
Councillor Langford-Smith  
  
 
Appointments – The Sub-Committee consists of a Chairman and two other Members who 
are appointed on a rota basis from the membership of the full Licensing and Regulation 
Committee subject to availability. The appointment of a Chairperson will be made at the 
start of each meeting from the three Members that form the Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
For the information, the Membership of the Licensing and Regulation Committee is: 
 
Councillors: Laming, Brophy, Cunningham, Gordon- Smith, Langford-Smith, Latham, 
Morris, Pett, Wallace and Wise (Deputies: Cllrs Bolton, Godfrey, Lee, Small and Tippett-
Cooper) 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
The meeting may be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the public – 
please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's Constitution for 
further information, which is available to view on the Council’s website. 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


Licensing Sub Committee – Procedure for Hearing Objections to Temporary Event 
Notices 

 
In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the hearing will take the 
form of a discussion led by the Sub-Committee. Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the 
Sub-Committee considers it necessary to properly consider the matter. 
 
Only the applicant and the objector will be entitled to be heard as of right by the Sub-Committee. 

 
1. The Chairman will set out the procedure to be followed in the hearing 
 
2.  The Licensing Manager will introduce the Report.  
 
3. The Members may ask questions of the Licensing Manager. 
 
4. The Objector  or representative may address the Sub-Committee and present their 

objection 
 
5. Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of the Objector or representative 
 
6. The Applicant or representative may ask questions of the Objector or representative. 
 
7. The Applicant may address the Sub-Committee. 
 
8. The Objector may ask questions of the Applicant. 
 
9. The Sub-Committee may ask questions of the Applicant or representative 
 
10. The Objector or representative may address the Sub-Committee in order to clarify any 

issues or points raised by the Applicant. 
 
The Committee will retire to consider the matter in private with only the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services’ representative and Committee Administrator in attendance. The Committee 
will reach its determination and notify the applicant of the decision in accordance with Regulations 
26 – 29 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.  
 

 

2.    
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 LR595 
 FOR DECISION 
 WARD(S): ALRESFORD AND ITCHEN VALLEY 
 
 
 
LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE 
 
 
Tuesday 3 June 2025 10:00 at The Wykeham Suite, Winchester Wessex 
Hotel, Paternoster Row, Winchester, SO23 9LQ 
 
 
Report of the Service Lead for Public Protection 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    
 
Tel No:   01962 848 188 
Email:   licensing@winchester.gov.uk  
 
 
Application:  Temporary Event Notice (TEN) 
 
Premises: Main beer tent at MXGP, Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road,  
  Winchester 
 
 
 
 
 
Part A. Report         

 
1 Application 
2 Relevant Persons 
3 Observations 
4 Other Considerations 
 

 
Part B. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
Appendix 2 TEN Supporting information  
Appendix 3 Objection from Police 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk


  

 
Part A. 
 
1. Application 
 
Premises User:   Mr Alan Dove 
 
Premises: Main beer tent at MXGP, Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road,  
  Winchester 
 
1.1 A Temporary Event Notice (“TEN”) pursuant to section 100 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, has been given to the licensing authority for an 
event “MXGP” to take place at Matterley Estate, Winchester.  

 
1.2 The TEN specifies that the event’s location is “Main beer tent, main 

arena. The TEN applies to the extent of the footprint of the marquee 
only. Location 51°02'53.0"N 1°13'41.4"W OS Grid Ref: SU 54200 
27917”.  
 

1.3 Licensable activities are proposed to take place on Friday 20 June 2025 
1200 to 0000, Saturday 21 June 2025 0900 to 0000 and Sunday 22 
June 2025 0900 to 2000.  
 

1.4 The TEN specifies the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption off the 
premises only) as a licensable activity. 

 
1.5 The TEN states that no more than 499 people will be on the premises at 

any one time whilst licensable activities are taking place. This includes 
any staff, organisers or performers.  
 

1.6 The TEN was received by the licensing authority on 22 May 2025, which 
is within the required time limits as outlined in section 100(7) of the 
Licensing Act 2003; that is, notice must be given to the licensing 
authority no later than ten working days before the day on which the 
event period begins.  
 

1.7 The TEN, as shown in Appendix 1, details the proposed dates, times 
and licensable activities.  
 

1.8 Temporary Event Notices must be served on both Environmental Health 
and the Police, as Relevant Persons, for consideration. This TEN was 
served on both Relevant Persons by the licensing authority on 23 May 
2025. 
 

1.9 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary made an objection to this 
TEN regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety 
licensing objectives. The objection was received on 27 May 2025, which 
was within the time limits outlined in section 104(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003; that is, no later than the end of the third working day after the 

Page 6



  

police is given a copy of the notice. The objection can be seen in 
Appendix 3.  
 

1.10 Environmental Health made no objection to this TEN. 
 

1.11 The MXGP event organiser, Mr Steve Dixon, has applied to Winchester 
City Council for a New Premises Licence, the consultation period for this 
application ends on 18 June 2025. If this TEN is authorised by the Sub-
Committee and then the Premises Licence is granted in time for the 
event, the TEN would subsequently be withdrawn and the Premises 
Licence used for licensable activities.  
 

1.12 Notices of the Hearing were sent to all Parties on 29 May 2025. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



  

Objections 
 

2. Relevant Persons  
 
Both the Police (Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary) and 
Environmental Health, being the “Relevant Persons” for TEN applications, 
were served with a copy of the notice on 23 May 2025.  No other Responsible 
Authorities are required to be notified of applications under a TEN.  The 
objections received are as follows: 
 
Environmental Health 
 
No objection received. 
 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary 
 
Objection was made by Police Staff Colin Pollard of Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Constabulary, who has the delegated authority of the Chief Officer of 
Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
objection has been made regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and 
public safety licensing objectives. The full objection can be seen in Appendix 3. 

Page 8



    

3. Observations 
 
3.1  The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application for an event 

 under a Temporary Event Notice with a view to promoting the Licensing 
 Objectives: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 

 3.2 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have 
 regard to the National Guidance and the Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 
3.3 The Sub-Committee must have regard to all of the objections. 
 
3.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps it considers 
 appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 

1. Acknowledge the Temporary Event Notice in accordance with the 
  application; or 

 
2. Issue a counter notice, which would prevent the event from going 
  ahead under the Temporary Event Notice. 

 
3.5 The Sub-Committee must seek to further the South Downs National 
 Park purposes when considering applications to ensure they are 
 respected. The purposes are:- 
 

(a)  Purpose 1 – to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife 
 and cultural heritage of the area. 
(b)  Purpose 2 – to promote opportunities for the understanding and 
 enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park by the 
 public. 

 
3.6 If there is a conflict between the SDNP purposes, Purpose 1 must have 
 priority. 
 
3.7 Section 11A(1A) of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 

1949 (as amended by Section 245 of the Levelling-Up and Regeneration 
Act 2023) states the following: 

 
 11A Duty of certain bodies and persons in relation to the purposes for 
which National Parks are designated  

 
  (1A) In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 
affect, land in any National Park in England, a relevant authority other 
than a devolved Welsh authority must seek to further the purposes 
specified in section 5(1) and if it appears that there is a conflict between 
those purposes, must attach greater weight to the purpose of conserving 

Page 9



    

and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the 
area comprised in the National Park. 

 
3.8 On 16 December 2024, Guidance for relevant authorities on seeking to 

further the purposes of Protected Landscapes was published. This 
guidance states that ‘the duty is an active duty, not passive’. The 
following are applicable excerpts of what this means to relevant 
authorities: 
 

• a relevant authority should take appropriate, reasonable, and 
proportionate steps to explore measures which further the 
statutory purposes of Protected Landscapes 

• as far as is reasonably practical, relevant authorities should seek 
to avoid harm and contribute to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural beauty, special qualities, and key 
characteristics of Protected Landscapes 

 
 
Terminal hours 
 
The Sub-Committee should take account of the National Guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy with regard to terminal hours and take such steps 
as it considers appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, A8) 
 
Licensing Objectives 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for crime and public 
disorder relating to the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy 1.9, 2.11, 2.17 and Part 4 Section A) 
 
Public Safety 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns over public safety relating 
to the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, B2, B3) 
 
Public Nuisance 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for public nuisance caused 
by noise pollution from the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, Section C) 

Page 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes


    

 
Protection of Children 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns relating to the protection of 
children on the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, D6, D7) 
 
Human Rights  
 
It is considered that Articles 6 (right to a fair trial) 8 (right to respect for private 
and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceable enjoyment 
of possessions) may be relevant. As there is a right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court, it is considered that there would be no infringement of 
Article 6. Article 8 is relevant, insofar as the nearby residents could claim that 
this right would be infringed by disturbance from customers. This should be 
balanced against the applicants’ right to use of their premises under Article 1 
of the First Protocol. Interference with these rights is permitted, where this 
interference is lawful, appropriate in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
Likewise, the residents may argue that their rights under Article 1 of the First 
Protocol would be infringed.  To the extent that any interference may occur, it 
would be justifiable in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
The Public Sector equality duty must be taken in to consideration with all 
decision making. The duty is stated in section 149 of The Equality Act 2010. 
This application raises no considerations under the Act.  
 
  
 

Page 11



 

4. Other Considerations 
 
Council Strategy Outcome (Relevance To:) 
 
This report relates to the ‘Vibrant Local Economy’ priority by working with 
partners and using powers available to us to make Winchester a safe and 
pleasant place to live, work and visit. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
A statutory fee of £21.00 has been received. The fee covers the administration 
of the TEN and does not include the costs of holding a Sub-Committee hearing 
and associated administration.  
 
Appendices 
 
1. Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
 
2. TEN supporting document 

 
3. Objection from police 

Page 12



 Winchester City Council
City Offices, Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ
T: 01962 840 222
E: licensing@winchester.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1747924379649

 

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User

Your Name (please read note 1)

Title * Mr

First Name * Alan

Surname * Dove

Have you been known by any previous names, including a 
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User

Date of Birth *

Place of Birth *

National Insurance Number *

Current Address

We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence 
address.

Street Address *

Town/City *

Postcode *

 1 / 6

Page 13



Ref: DSFX1747924379649

Current Address

Daytime Telephone Number *

Evening Telephone Number

Mobile Telephone Number

Fax Number

Email Address *

Do you have an alternative correspondence address you 
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises

Premises Address
MATTERLEY BOWL ALRESFORD ROAD WINCHESTER 
HAMPSHIRE SO21 1HW

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have 
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises? 
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number 
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

No - Neither

Premises

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address 
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, 
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

Main beer tent, main arena. The TEN applies to the extent 
of the footprint of the marquee only. Location 51°02'53.0"N 
1°13'41.4"W OS Grid Ref: SU 54200 27917

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read 
note 4) *

This will be a 18m x 9m structure with two bar counters - one 
facing the daytime sports arena, the other facing the evening 
entertainment space.

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5) 
*

The main event is a motosports event taking place during 
the daytime, followed by a small entertainment area in the 
evening for people camping close to the event.

Licensable Activities

 2 / 6

Page 14



Ref: DSFX1747924379649

Licensable Activities

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you 
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

 
✓ The sale by retail of alcohol

 
The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

 
The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

 
The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read 
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these 
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start 
Date

20/06/2025

End Date 22/06/2025

Please state the times during the event period that you 
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in 
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

Friday 20.6.25 12:00 until 24:00 Saturday 21.6.25 09:00 until 
24:00 Sunday 22.6.25 09:00 until 20:00

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time 
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during 
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities, 
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read 
note 11) *

499

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of 
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption 
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

Off the premises only

Please state if the licensable activities will include the 
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the 
times during the event period that you propose to provide 
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap 
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

No

Personal Licence Holder

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read 
note 14)*

Yes

 3 / 6

Page 15



Ref: DSFX1747924379649

Personal Licence Details

Issuing Licensing Authority * Poole

Licence number * BOP_M00382

Date of issue * 24/11/2005

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you previously given a temporary event notice in 
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same 
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this 
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

Yes

Previous Event Notice

Please state the number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) 
you have given for events in that same calendar year. *

7

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the 
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24 
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event 
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice 
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which 
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read 
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event 
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a) 
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less 
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

 4 / 6

Page 16



Ref: DSFX1747924379649

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an 
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you 
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

Yes

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice 
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24 
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the 
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration

Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required 
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the 
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this 
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of 
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are 
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send 
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I 
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of 
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i) 
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is 
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity 
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount, 
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.

Name of Person Signing * Alan Dove

Date * 22/05/2025

 
✓ Declaration Made

Email confirmation

On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below

Forename Alan

 5 / 6

Page 17



Ref: DSFX1747924379649

Email confirmation

Surname /Company Name Dove

Email *

Telephone

 6 / 6

Page 18



MXGP of Great Britain 
 
This is the British round of the Motocross Grand Prix and should not be confused with another 
larger event that is called MXON - Motocross of Nations. It was last held at this location in June 
2024. 
 
The event organiser (Steve Dixon) has been asked by Hampshire Police to apply for a premises 
licence for this event, which he has done and it is currently being considered by Winchester City 
Council. The application for the premises licence has a significant risk of not being decided in 
time for the 2025 event on 20-22 June 2025, but would be applicable for future years. 
 
To try and alleviate the risk of the event taking place without any licensable activity I have 
applied for this temporary event notice (alongside 4 others) for individual smaller aspects of the 
premises licence applied for, for 2025 only. These TEN’s effectively try and act as a backstop to 
allow more limited licensable activity to take place for 1 year only should the premises licence 
not be decided upon in time. 
 
In total I will apply for 5 TENS: 
1 Main arena & evening bar 
2 Small daytime relief bar for main arena 
3 Evening entertainment space (no alcohol service) 
4 VIP guest bar 
5 Small relief bar for paddock 
 
Should the premises licence be granted prior to the event I would withdraw all 5 of these TENs 
applied for. I am the named DPS on the premises license application. 
 
The event organiser and I feel there would be significantly better controls, legal responsibility 
and accountability if the event is controlled under either a premises licence or TEN. The 
alternative if nothing was granted could result in attendees compensating for such services not 
being provided by us and instead doing it through their own means. 
 
There is an event management plan that has been submitted to Winchester Council in 
connection with this event and premises licence application that includes important aspects of 
the licensable activity and bars service. 
In particular: 
Staff handbook for all bar staff, a face to face on the job briefing and written confirmation from 
them that they understand their responsibilities under the licensing act - particularly with respect 
to age verification and intoxication assessment. This will include a written refusal register on 
each bar. 
 
Alan Dove 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



RESTRICTED 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

Before completing this form, please refer to FPP 07001 (Licensing (Licensing Act 2003)) 
 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and wish to make a -objection- under the 
Licensing Act 2003, regarding the: 
 

 

 .1: New Premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

 .2: Variation of premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

  3: Minor variation of premises licence/club prem certificate   Representation within 10 days 

  4: Variation of DPS  Object within 14 days 

  5: Transfer of premises licence  Object within 14 days 

  6: Standard temporary event notice Object within 3 working days 

  7: Late temporary event notice Object with 3 working days  

  8: Application for a personal licence Object within 14 days 

  9: Provisional statement Representation within 28 days 

  10: Ancillary sales notice Object within 3 working days 

  11: Interim authority notice Object within 2 working days 

 
 

Name of Applicant: Mr Alan Dove 

Name of Proposed DPS: NA 

 

Details of relevant conviction ( Personal Licence Applications ONLY) 

NA 

 

Postal address of 
premises: 
 

Matterley Bowl Alresford Road Winchester 

Postcode: SO21 1HW 

 
Details of responsible authority applicant 
 

Mr    Mrs   Miss   Ms   Other title / Rank:  Police Staff 16866 

Surname: Pollard First Names: Colin       

Current postal address 
: 

Fareham Police Station 
Quay Street Fareham 

Postcode: PO160NA 

Daytime telephone 
number: 

02380 451304 

E-mail address: 
(optional) 

      

 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and the applicant has the delegated authority of 
the Chief Officer of Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 

Page 21



RESTRICTED 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

 
This application to object relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
                       

1) The prevention of crime and disorder  

Please select 
one or more 
boxes 

2) Public safety  

3) The prevention of public nuisance  

4) The protection of children from harm  

 
 

Please state the ground(s) for -objection-: 

 
The Chief Officer of Police objects to this Temporary Event Notice on the Grounds of Public Safety, 
Crime and Disorder. 
 
This event has taken place at this location for many years and the provision of licensable activity has 
been a significant concern, every year, for police and other responsible authorities. 
 
The event organisers attend the local Safety Advisary Group each year where these concerns are 
raised with little to no effective changes year on year. This has resulted in numerous breaches of 
conditions, failures to promote the licensing objectives and further offences under the Licensing Act 
2003. Each year is like the very first year for an inexperienced operator, however it has been the 
same operator for this lengthy period with no lessons seemingly learned. 
 
The MotoCross aspect of this event is not licensable activity, however the sale of alcohol, late night 
refreshment and regulated entertainment is provided each year and this TEN seeks to authorise 
alcohol sales at the main bar for 2025. 
 
In 2024, the MotoCross of Nations event took place with licensable activity authorised under multiple 
Temporary Event Notices. There were a number of failings, recorded by police, at this event which 
included alleged S136 offences. These failings impacted negatively upon the licensing objectives. 
 
In addition to the failings the event also saw the unfortunate death of a memebr of the public in 
attendance. 
 
Prior to 2017 the licensable activity was authorised on Temporary Event Notices. In 2018, police 
insisted that a premises licence should be in place to ensure robust measures would be required 
under the act by imposing necessary conditions to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
The organiser was informed that police would object to the use of Temporary Event Notices for the 
main licensable activity at this event. Premises Licences were issued for the event in 2018, 
transferred later due to liquidation of the company and then later lapsed due to a further liquidation. 
 
Following the premises licences becoming null and void, the event went ahead with no lawful 
permission for the licensable activity. This was unknown to the authorities at the time but must have 
been known to the licence holder whose company had been liquidated. 
 
Whilst the trading under these premises licences was a positive step to increase the safety of the 
public and prevent crime and disorder, there were a number of breaches of these conditions 
recorded and evidence of a failure to promote the objectives. 
 

Page 22



RESTRICTED 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

In February 2025 police notified the event organiser that TENs were not appropriate for the 
authorisation of this event, which expects 7000-10000 people in attendance. Our experience with the 
operator is that lawful requirements by condition, to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
are necessary and without these the objectives will not be promoted at this event. The organiser was 
informed that police would object to Temporary Event Notices for this event and that a new Premises 
Licence with appropriate conditions would be necessary. 
 
 
 
  

 
It is an offence, under section 158 of the Licensing Act 2003 to make a false statement in or in 

connection with this representation 
 
 

Police recommendations  (including any conditions) 

 
Please issue a counter notice to refuse this TEN. 

 
 
Signature of Officer Completing 
 

Name Colin Pollard Collar Number: 16866 

Signature: Colin Pollard Date: 25/05/2025 

 

 

 

 
 
Signature of Authorising Officer 
 

Name PS Rob Cohen Collar Number: 2489 

Signature: Rob Cohen Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 LR596 
 FOR DECISION 
 WARD(S): ALRESFORD AND ITCHEN VALLEY 
 
 
 
LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE 
 
 
Tuesday 3 June 2025 10:00 at The Wykeham Suite, Winchester Wessex 
Hotel, Paternoster Row, Winchester, SO23 9LQ 
 
 
Report of the Service Lead for Public Protection 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    
 
Tel No:   01962 848 188 
Email:   licensing@winchester.gov.uk  
 
 
Application:  Temporary Event Notice (TEN) 
 
Premises: Event arena daytime relief bar at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,  
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
 
 
 
 
Part A. Report         

 
1 Application 
2 Relevant Persons 
3 Observations 
4 Other Considerations 
 

 
Part B. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
Appendix 2 TEN Supporting information  
Appendix 3 Objection from Police 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk


  

 
Part A. 
 
1. Application 
 
Premises User:   Mr Alan Dove 
 
Premises: Event arena daytime relief bar at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,  
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
1.1 A Temporary Event Notice (“TEN”) pursuant to section 100 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, has been given to the licensing authority for an 
event “MXGP” to take place at Matterley Estate, Winchester.  

 
1.2 The TEN specifies that the event’s location is “Event arena small 

daytime relief bar at 2025 MXGP of Britain 51°02'48.0"N 1°13'49.0"W 
OS Grid Ref: SU 54054 27761 This notice applies to the footprint of the 
beer service tent only” 
 

1.3 Licensable activities are proposed to take place on Friday 20 June 2025 
1200 to 2000, Saturday 21 June 2025 0900 to 2000 and Sunday 22 
June 2025 0900 to 2000.  
 

1.4 The TEN specifies the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption off the 
premises only) as a licensable activity. 

 
1.5 The TEN states that no more than 499 people will be on the premises at 

any one time whilst licensable activities are taking place. This includes 
any staff, organisers or performers.  
 

1.6 The TEN was received by the licensing authority on 22 May 2025, which 
is within the required time limits as outlined in section 100(7) of the 
Licensing Act 2003; that is, notice must be given to the licensing 
authority no later than ten working days before the day on which the 
event period begins.  
 

1.7 The TEN, as shown in Appendix 1, details the proposed dates, times 
and licensable activities.  
 

1.8 Temporary Event Notices must be served on both Environmental Health 
and the Police, as Relevant Persons, for consideration. This TEN was 
served on both Relevant Persons by the licensing authority on 23 May 
2025. 
 

1.9 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary made an objection to this 
TEN regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety 
licensing objectives. The objection was received on 27 May 2025, which 
was within the time limits outlined in section 104(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003; that is, no later than the end of the third working day after the 

Page 26



  

police is given a copy of the notice. The objection can be seen in 
Appendix 3.  
 

1.10 Environmental Health made no objection to this TEN. 
 

1.11 The MXGP event organiser, Mr Steve Dixon, has applied to Winchester 
City Council for a New Premises Licence, the consultation period for this 
application ends on 18 June 2025. If this TEN is authorised by the Sub-
Committee and then the Premises Licence is granted in time for the 
event, the TEN would subsequently be withdrawn and the Premises 
Licence used for licensable activities.  
 

1.12 Notices of the Hearing were sent to all Parties on 29 May 2025. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



  

Objections 
 

2. Relevant Persons  
 
Both the Police (Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary) and 
Environmental Health, being the “Relevant Persons” for TEN applications, 
were served with a copy of the notice on 23 May 2025.  No other Responsible 
Authorities are required to be notified of applications under a TEN.  The 
objections received are as follows: 
 
Environmental Health 
 
No objection received. 
 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary 
 
Objection was made by PC Peter-James Vincent of Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Constabulary, who has the delegated authority of the Chief Officer of 
Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
objection has been made regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and 
public safety licensing objectives. The full objection can be seen in Appendix 3. 

Page 28



    

3. Observations 
 
3.1  The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application for an event 

 under a Temporary Event Notice with a view to promoting the Licensing 
 Objectives: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 

 3.2 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have 
 regard to the National Guidance and the Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 
3.3 The Sub-Committee must have regard to all of the objections. 
 
3.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps it considers 
 appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 

1. Acknowledge the Temporary Event Notice in accordance with the 
  application; or 

 
2. Issue a counter notice, which would prevent the event from going 
  ahead under the Temporary Event Notice. 

 
3.5 The Sub-Committee must seek to further the South Downs National 
 Park purposes when considering applications to ensure they are 
 respected. The purposes are:- 
 

(a)  Purpose 1 – to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife 
 and cultural heritage of the area. 
(b)  Purpose 2 – to promote opportunities for the understanding and 
 enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park by the 
 public. 

 
3.6 If there is a conflict between the SDNP purposes, Purpose 1 must have 
 priority. 
 
3.7 Section 11A(1A) of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 

1949 (as amended by Section 245 of the Levelling-Up and Regeneration 
Act 2023) states the following: 

 
 11A Duty of certain bodies and persons in relation to the purposes for 
which National Parks are designated  

 
  (1A) In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 
affect, land in any National Park in England, a relevant authority other 
than a devolved Welsh authority must seek to further the purposes 
specified in section 5(1) and if it appears that there is a conflict between 
those purposes, must attach greater weight to the purpose of conserving 

Page 29



    

and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the 
area comprised in the National Park. 

 
3.8 On 16 December 2024, Guidance for relevant authorities on seeking to 

further the purposes of Protected Landscapes was published. This 
guidance states that ‘the duty is an active duty, not passive’. The 
following are applicable excerpts of what this means to relevant 
authorities: 
 

• a relevant authority should take appropriate, reasonable, and 
proportionate steps to explore measures which further the 
statutory purposes of Protected Landscapes 

• as far as is reasonably practical, relevant authorities should seek 
to avoid harm and contribute to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural beauty, special qualities, and key 
characteristics of Protected Landscapes 

 
 
Terminal hours 
 
The Sub-Committee should take account of the National Guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy with regard to terminal hours and take such steps 
as it considers appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, A8) 
 
Licensing Objectives 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for crime and public 
disorder relating to the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy 1.9, 2.11, 2.17 and Part 4 Section A) 
 
Public Safety 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns over public safety relating 
to the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, B2, B3) 
 
Public Nuisance 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for public nuisance caused 
by noise pollution from the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, Section C) 

Page 30

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes


    

 
Protection of Children 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns relating to the protection of 
children on the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, D6, D7) 
 
Human Rights  
 
It is considered that Articles 6 (right to a fair trial) 8 (right to respect for private 
and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceable enjoyment 
of possessions) may be relevant. As there is a right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court, it is considered that there would be no infringement of 
Article 6. Article 8 is relevant, insofar as the nearby residents could claim that 
this right would be infringed by disturbance from customers. This should be 
balanced against the applicants’ right to use of their premises under Article 1 
of the First Protocol. Interference with these rights is permitted, where this 
interference is lawful, appropriate in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
Likewise, the residents may argue that their rights under Article 1 of the First 
Protocol would be infringed.  To the extent that any interference may occur, it 
would be justifiable in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
The Public Sector equality duty must be taken in to consideration with all 
decision making. The duty is stated in section 149 of The Equality Act 2010. 
This application raises no considerations under the Act.  
 
  
 

Page 31



 

4. Other Considerations 
 
Council Strategy Outcome (Relevance To:) 
 
This report relates to the ‘Vibrant Local Economy’ priority by working with 
partners and using powers available to us to make Winchester a safe and 
pleasant place to live, work and visit. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
A statutory fee of £21.00 has been received. The fee covers the administration 
of the TEN and does not include the costs of holding a Sub-Committee hearing 
and associated administration.  
 
Appendices 
 
1. Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
 
2. TEN supporting document 

 
3. Objection from police 

Page 32



 Winchester City Council
City Offices, Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ
T: 01962 840 222
E: licensing@winchester.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1747925222558

 

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User

Your Name (please read note 1)

Title * Mr

First Name * Alan

Surname * Dove

Have you been known by any previous names, including a 
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User

Date of Birth *

Place of Birth *

National Insurance Number *

Current Address

We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence 
address.

Street Address *

Town/City *

Postcode *

 1 / 6

Page 33



Ref: DSFX1747925222558

Current Address

Daytime Telephone Number *

Evening Telephone Number

Mobile Telephone Number

Fax Number

Email Address *

Do you have an alternative correspondence address you 
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises

Premises Address
MATTERLEY BOWL ALRESFORD ROAD WINCHESTER 
HAMPSHIRE SO21 1HW

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have 
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises? 
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number 
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

No - Neither

Premises

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address 
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, 
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

Event arena small daytime relief bar at 2025 MXGP of Britain 
51°02'48.0"N 1°13'49.0"W OS Grid Ref: SU 54054 27761 
This notice applies to the footprint of the beer service tent 
only

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read 
note 4) *

Small 6m bar in the daytime audience arena to relieve 
pressure on the main bar.

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5) 
*

The event is a daytime motor sports event and this is a 
daytime refreshment bar for the audience.

Licensable Activities

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you 
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

 2 / 6

Page 34



Ref: DSFX1747925222558

Licensable Activities
 

✓ The sale by retail of alcohol

 
The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

 
The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

 
The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read 
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these 
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start 
Date

20/06/2025

End Date 22/06/2025

Please state the times during the event period that you 
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in 
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

Friday 20.6.2025, 12:00 until 20:00 Saturday 21.6.2025, 
09:00 until 20:00 Sunday 22.6.2025, 09:00 until 20:00

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time 
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during 
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities, 
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read 
note 11) *

499

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of 
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption 
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

Off the premises only

Please state if the licensable activities will include the 
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the 
times during the event period that you propose to provide 
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap 
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

No

Personal Licence Holder

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read 
note 14)*

Yes

Personal Licence Details

Issuing Licensing Authority * Poole

 3 / 6

Page 35



Ref: DSFX1747925222558

Personal Licence Details

Licence number * BOP_M00382

Date of issue * 24/11/2005

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you previously given a temporary event notice in 
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same 
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this 
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

Yes

Previous Event Notice

Please state the number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) 
you have given for events in that same calendar year. *

8

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the 
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24 
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event 
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice 
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which 
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read 
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event 
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a) 
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less 
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an Yes

 4 / 6

Page 36



Ref: DSFX1747925222558

Associates and Business Colleagues
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you 
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice 
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24 
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the 
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration

Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required 
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the 
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this 
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of 
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are 
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send 
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I 
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of 
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i) 
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is 
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity 
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount, 
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.

Name of Person Signing * Alan Dove

Date * 22/05/2025

 
✓ Declaration Made

Email confirmation

On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below

Forename Alan

Surname /Company Name Dove

 5 / 6

Page 37



Ref: DSFX1747925222558

Email confirmation

Email *

Telephone

 6 / 6

Page 38



MXGP of Great Britain 
 
This is the British round of the Motocross Grand Prix and should not be confused with another 
larger event that is called MXON - Motocross of Nations. It was last held at this location in June 
2024. 
 
The event organiser (Steve Dixon) has been asked by Hampshire Police to apply for a premises 
licence for this event, which he has done and it is currently being considered by Winchester City 
Council. The application for the premises licence has a significant risk of not being decided in 
time for the 2025 event on 20-22 June 2025, but would be applicable for future years. 
 
To try and alleviate the risk of the event taking place without any licensable activity I have 
applied for this temporary event notice (alongside 4 others) for individual smaller aspects of the 
premises licence applied for, for 2025 only. These TEN’s effectively try and act as a backstop to 
allow more limited licensable activity to take place for 1 year only should the premises licence 
not be decided upon in time. 
 
In total I will apply for 5 TENS: 
1 Main arena & evening bar 
2 Small daytime relief bar for main arena 
3 Evening entertainment space (no alcohol service) 
4 VIP guest bar 
5 Small relief bar for paddock 
 
Should the premises licence be granted prior to the event I would withdraw all 5 of these TENs 
applied for. I am the named DPS on the premises license application. 
 
The event organiser and I feel there would be significantly better controls, legal responsibility 
and accountability if the event is controlled under either a premises licence or TEN. The 
alternative if nothing was granted could result in attendees compensating for such services not 
being provided by us and instead doing it through their own means. 
 
There is an event management plan that has been submitted to Winchester Council in 
connection with this event and premises licence application that includes important aspects of 
the licensable activity and bars service. 
In particular: 
Staff handbook for all bar staff, a face to face on the job briefing and written confirmation from 
them that they understand their responsibilities under the licensing act - particularly with respect 
to age verification and intoxication assessment. This will include a written refusal register on 
each bar. 
 
Alan Dove 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



RESTRICTED 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

Before completing this form, please refer to FPP 07001 (Licensing (Licensing Act 2003)) 
 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and wish to make a -objection- under the 
Licensing Act 2003, regarding the: 
 

 

 .1: New Premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

 .2: Variation of premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

  3: Minor variation of premises licence/club prem certificate   Representation within 10 days 

  4: Variation of DPS  Object within 14 days 

  5: Transfer of premises licence  Object within 14 days 

  6: Standard temporary event notice Object within 3 working days 

  7: Late temporary event notice Object with 3 working days  

  8: Application for a personal licence Object within 14 days 

  9: Provisional statement Representation within 28 days 

  10: Ancillary sales notice Object within 3 working days 

  11: Interim authority notice Object within 2 working days 

 
 

Name of Applicant: Mr Alan Dove 

Name of Proposed DPS: NA 

 

Details of relevant conviction ( Personal Licence Applications ONLY) 

NA 

 

Postal address of 
premises: 
 

Matterley Bowl Alresford Road Winchester 

Postcode: SO21 1HW 

 
Details of responsible authority applicant 
 

Mr    Mrs   Miss   Ms   Other title / Rank:  Police Staff 16866 

Surname: Pollard First Names: Colin       

Current postal address 
: 

Fareham Police Station 
Quay Street Fareham 

Postcode: PO160NA 

Daytime telephone 
number: 

02380 451304 

E-mail address: 
(optional) 

      

 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and the applicant has the delegated authority of 
the Chief Officer of Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 

Page 41



RESTRICTED 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

 
This application to object relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
                       

1) The prevention of crime and disorder  

Please select 
one or more 
boxes 

2) Public safety  

3) The prevention of public nuisance  

4) The protection of children from harm  

 
 

Please state the ground(s) for -objection-: 

 
The Chief Officer of Police objects to this Temporary Event Notice on the Grounds of Public Safety, 
Crime and Disorder. 
 
This event has taken place at this location for many years and the provision of licensable activity has 
been a significant concern, every year, for police and other responsible authorities. 
 
The event organisers attend the local Safety Advisary Group each year where these concerns are 
raised with little to no effective changes year on year. This has resulted in numerous breaches of 
conditions, failures to promote the licensing objectives and further offences under the Licensing Act 
2003. Each year is like the very first year for an inexperienced operator, however it has been the 
same operator for this lengthy period with no lessons seemingly learned. 
 
The MotoCross aspect of this event is not licensable activity, however the sale of alcohol, late night 
refreshment and regulated entertainment is provided each year and this TEN seeks to authorise 
alcohol sales at the main bar for 2025. 
 
In 2024, the MotoCross of Nations event took place with licensable activity authorised under multiple 
Temporary Event Notices. There were a number of failings, recorded by police, at this event which 
included alleged S136 offences. These failings impacted negatively upon the licensing objectives. 
 
In addition to the failings the event also saw the unfortunate death of a memebr of the public in 
attendance. 
 
Prior to 2017 the licensable activity was authorised on Temporary Event Notices. In 2018, police 
insisted that a premises licence should be in place to ensure robust measures would be required 
under the act by imposing necessary conditions to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
The organiser was informed that police would object to the use of Temporary Event Notices for the 
main licensable activity at this event. Premises Licences were issued for the event in 2018, 
transferred later due to liquidation of the company and then later lapsed due to a further liquidation. 
 
Following the premises licences becoming null and void, the event went ahead with no lawful 
permission for the licensable activity. This was unknown to the authorities at the time but must have 
been known to the licence holder whose company had been liquidated. 
 
Whilst the trading under these premises licences was a positive step to increase the safety of the 
public and prevent crime and disorder, there were a number of breaches of these conditions 
recorded and evidence of a failure to promote the objectives. 
 

Page 42



RESTRICTED 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

In February 2025 police notified the event organiser that TENs were not appropriate for the 
authorisation of this event, which expects 7000-10000 people in attendance. Our experience with the 
operator is that lawful requirements by condition, to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
are necessary and without these the objectives will not be promoted at this event. The organiser was 
informed that police would object to Temporary Event Notices for this event and that a new Premises 
Licence with appropriate conditions would be necessary. 
 
 
 
  

 
It is an offence, under section 158 of the Licensing Act 2003 to make a false statement in or in 

connection with this representation 
 
 

Police recommendations  (including any conditions) 

 
Please issue a counter notice to refuse this TEN. 

 
 
Signature of Officer Completing 
 

Name Colin Pollard Collar Number: 16866 

Signature: Colin Pollard Date: 25/05/2025 

 

 

 

 
 
Signature of Authorising Officer 
 

Name PS Rob Cohen Collar Number: 2489 

Signature: Rob Cohen Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 LR597 
 FOR DECISION 
 WARD(S): ALRESFORD AND ITCHEN VALLEY 
 
 
 
LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE 
 
 
Tuesday 3 June 2025 10:00 at The Wykeham Suite, Winchester Wessex 
Hotel, Paternoster Row, Winchester, SO23 9LQ 
 
 
Report of the Service Lead for Public Protection 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    
 
Tel No:   01962 848 188 
Email:   licensing@winchester.gov.uk  
 
 
Application:  Temporary Event Notice (TEN) 
 
Premises: Relief bar in paddock area at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,   
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
 
 
 
 
Part A. Report         

 
1 Application 
2 Relevant Persons 
3 Observations 
4 Other Considerations 
 

 
Part B. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
Appendix 2 TEN Supporting information  
Appendix 3 Objection from Police 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk


  

 
Part A. 
 
1. Application 
 
Premises User:   Mr Alan Dove 
 
Premises: Relief bar in paddock area at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,  Alresford 
  Road, Winchester 
 
1.1 A Temporary Event Notice (“TEN”) pursuant to section 100 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, has been given to the licensing authority for an 
event “MXGP” to take place at Matterley Estate, Winchester.  

 
1.2 The TEN specifies that the event’s location is “Small relief bar in 

paddock area at 2025 MXGP of Britain 51°03#00#N , 001°13#57#W OS 
Grid Ref: SU 53895 28137 This notice applies to the footprint of the 
beer service tent only” 
 

1.3 Licensable activities are proposed to take place on Friday 20 June 2025 
0900 to 2200, Saturday 21 June 2025 0900 to 2200 and Sunday 22 
June 2025 0900 to 2000.  
 

1.4 The TEN specifies the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption off the 
premises only) as a licensable activity. 

 
1.5 The TEN states that no more than 499 people will be on the premises at 

any one time whilst licensable activities are taking place. This includes 
any staff, organisers or performers.  
 

1.6 The TEN was received by the licensing authority on 22 May 2025, which 
is within the required time limits as outlined in section 100(7) of the 
Licensing Act 2003; that is, notice must be given to the licensing 
authority no later than ten working days before the day on which the 
event period begins.  
 

1.7 The TEN, as shown in Appendix 1, details the proposed dates, times 
and licensable activities.  
 

1.8 Temporary Event Notices must be served on both Environmental Health 
and the Police, as Relevant Persons, for consideration. This TEN was 
served on both Relevant Persons by the licensing authority on 23 May 
2025. 
 

1.9 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary made an objection to this 
TEN regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety 
licensing objectives. The objection was received on 27 May 2025, which 
was within the time limits outlined in section 104(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003; that is, no later than the end of the third working day after the 

Page 46



  

police is given a copy of the notice. The objection can be seen in 
Appendix 3.  
 

1.10 Environmental Health made no objection to this TEN. 
 

1.11 The MXGP event organiser, Mr Steve Dixon, has applied to Winchester 
City Council for a New Premises Licence, the consultation period for this 
application ends on 18 June 2025. If this TEN is authorised by the Sub-
Committee and then the Premises Licence is granted in time for the 
event, the TEN would subsequently be withdrawn and the Premises 
Licence used for licensable activities.  
 

1.12 Notices of the Hearing were sent to all Parties on 29 May 2025. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



  

Objections 
 

2. Relevant Persons  
 
Both the Police (Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary) and 
Environmental Health, being the “Relevant Persons” for TEN applications, 
were served with a copy of the notice on 23 May 2025.  No other Responsible 
Authorities are required to be notified of applications under a TEN.  The 
objections received are as follows: 
 
Environmental Health 
 
No objection received. 
 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary 
 
Objection was made by PC Peter-James Vincent of Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Constabulary, who has the delegated authority of the Chief Officer of 
Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
objection has been made regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and 
public safety licensing objectives. The full objection can be seen in Appendix 3. 

Page 48



    

3. Observations 
 
3.1  The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application for an event 

 under a Temporary Event Notice with a view to promoting the Licensing 
 Objectives: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 

 3.2 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have 
 regard to the National Guidance and the Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 
3.3 The Sub-Committee must have regard to all of the objections. 
 
3.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps it considers 
 appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 

1. Acknowledge the Temporary Event Notice in accordance with the 
  application; or 

 
2. Issue a counter notice, which would prevent the event from going 
  ahead under the Temporary Event Notice. 

 
3.5 The Sub-Committee must seek to further the South Downs National 
 Park purposes when considering applications to ensure they are 
 respected. The purposes are:- 
 

(a)  Purpose 1 – to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife 
 and cultural heritage of the area. 
(b)  Purpose 2 – to promote opportunities for the understanding and 
 enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park by the 
 public. 

 
3.6 If there is a conflict between the SDNP purposes, Purpose 1 must have 
 priority. 
 
3.7 Section 11A(1A) of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 

1949 (as amended by Section 245 of the Levelling-Up and Regeneration 
Act 2023) states the following: 

 
 11A Duty of certain bodies and persons in relation to the purposes for 
which National Parks are designated  

 
  (1A) In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 
affect, land in any National Park in England, a relevant authority other 
than a devolved Welsh authority must seek to further the purposes 
specified in section 5(1) and if it appears that there is a conflict between 
those purposes, must attach greater weight to the purpose of conserving 

Page 49



    

and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the 
area comprised in the National Park. 

 
3.8 On 16 December 2024, Guidance for relevant authorities on seeking to 

further the purposes of Protected Landscapes was published. This 
guidance states that ‘the duty is an active duty, not passive’. The 
following are applicable excerpts of what this means to relevant 
authorities: 
 

• a relevant authority should take appropriate, reasonable, and 
proportionate steps to explore measures which further the 
statutory purposes of Protected Landscapes 

• as far as is reasonably practical, relevant authorities should seek 
to avoid harm and contribute to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural beauty, special qualities, and key 
characteristics of Protected Landscapes 

 
 
Terminal hours 
 
The Sub-Committee should take account of the National Guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy with regard to terminal hours and take such steps 
as it considers appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, A8) 
 
Licensing Objectives 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for crime and public 
disorder relating to the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy 1.9, 2.11, 2.17 and Part 4 Section A) 
 
Public Safety 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns over public safety relating 
to the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, B2, B3) 
 
Public Nuisance 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for public nuisance caused 
by noise pollution from the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, Section C) 

Page 50

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes


    

 
Protection of Children 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns relating to the protection of 
children on the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, D6, D7) 
 
Human Rights  
 
It is considered that Articles 6 (right to a fair trial) 8 (right to respect for private 
and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceable enjoyment 
of possessions) may be relevant. As there is a right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court, it is considered that there would be no infringement of 
Article 6. Article 8 is relevant, insofar as the nearby residents could claim that 
this right would be infringed by disturbance from customers. This should be 
balanced against the applicants’ right to use of their premises under Article 1 
of the First Protocol. Interference with these rights is permitted, where this 
interference is lawful, appropriate in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
Likewise, the residents may argue that their rights under Article 1 of the First 
Protocol would be infringed.  To the extent that any interference may occur, it 
would be justifiable in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
The Public Sector equality duty must be taken in to consideration with all 
decision making. The duty is stated in section 149 of The Equality Act 2010. 
This application raises no considerations under the Act.  
 
  
 

Page 51



 

4. Other Considerations 
 
Council Strategy Outcome (Relevance To:) 
 
This report relates to the ‘Vibrant Local Economy’ priority by working with 
partners and using powers available to us to make Winchester a safe and 
pleasant place to live, work and visit. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
A statutory fee of £21.00 has been received. The fee covers the administration 
of the TEN and does not include the costs of holding a Sub-Committee hearing 
and associated administration.  
 
Appendices 
 
1. Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
 
2. TEN supporting document 

 
3. Objection from police 

Page 52



 Winchester City Council
City Offices, Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ
T: 01962 840 222
E: licensing@winchester.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1747927503721

 

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User

Your Name (please read note 1)

Title * Mr

First Name * Alan

Surname * Dove

Have you been known by any previous names, including a 
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User

Date of Birth *

Place of Birth *

National Insurance Number *

Current Address

We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence 
address.

Street Address *

Town/City *

Postcode *

 1 / 6

Page 53



Ref: DSFX1747927503721

Current Address

Daytime Telephone Number *

Evening Telephone Number

Mobile Telephone Number

Fax Number

Email Address *

Do you have an alternative correspondence address you 
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises

Premises Address
MATTERLEY BOWL ALRESFORD ROAD WINCHESTER 
HAMPSHIRE SO21 1HW

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have 
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises? 
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number 
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

No - Neither

Premises

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address 
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, 
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

Small relief bar in paddock area at 2025 MXGP of Britain 
51°03#00#N , 001°13#57#W OS Grid Ref: SU 53895 28137 
This notice applies to the footprint of the beer service tent 
only

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read 
note 4) *

Small 6m bar adjacent to the paddock to relieve pressure on 
the main bar.

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5) 
*

The event is a daytime motor sports event and this is a 
refreshment bar for the audience and teams.

Licensable Activities

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you 
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

 2 / 6

Page 54



Ref: DSFX1747927503721

Licensable Activities
 

✓ The sale by retail of alcohol

 
The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

 
The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

 
The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read 
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these 
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start 
Date

20/06/2025

End Date 22/06/2025

Please state the times during the event period that you 
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in 
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

20.6.2025 09:00 until 22:00 21.6.2025, 09:00 until 22:00 
22.6.2025, 09:00 until 20:00

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time 
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during 
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities, 
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read 
note 11) *

499

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of 
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption 
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

Off the premises only

Please state if the licensable activities will include the 
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the 
times during the event period that you propose to provide 
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap 
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

No

Personal Licence Holder

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read 
note 14)*

Yes

Personal Licence Details

Issuing Licensing Authority * Poole

 3 / 6

Page 55



Ref: DSFX1747927503721

Personal Licence Details

Licence number * BOP_M00382

Date of issue * 24/11/2005

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you previously given a temporary event notice in 
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same 
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this 
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

Yes

Previous Event Notice

Please state the number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) 
you have given for events in that same calendar year. *

11

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the 
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24 
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event 
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice 
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which 
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read 
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event 
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a) 
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less 
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an Yes

 4 / 6

Page 56



Ref: DSFX1747927503721

Associates and Business Colleagues
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you 
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice 
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24 
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the 
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration

Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required 
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the 
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this 
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of 
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are 
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send 
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I 
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of 
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i) 
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is 
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity 
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount, 
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.

Name of Person Signing * Alan Dove

Date * 22/05/2025

 
✓ Declaration Made

Email confirmation

On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below

Forename Alan

Surname /Company Name Dove

 5 / 6

Page 57



Ref: DSFX1747927503721

Email confirmation

Email *

Telephone

 6 / 6

Page 58



MXGP of Great Britain 
 
This is the British round of the Motocross Grand Prix and should not be confused with another 
larger event that is called MXON - Motocross of Nations. It was last held at this location in June 
2024. 
 
The event organiser (Steve Dixon) has been asked by Hampshire Police to apply for a premises 
licence for this event, which he has done and it is currently being considered by Winchester City 
Council. The application for the premises licence has a significant risk of not being decided in 
time for the 2025 event on 20-22 June 2025, but would be applicable for future years. 
 
To try and alleviate the risk of the event taking place without any licensable activity I have 
applied for this temporary event notice (alongside 4 others) for individual smaller aspects of the 
premises licence applied for, for 2025 only. These TEN’s effectively try and act as a backstop to 
allow more limited licensable activity to take place for 1 year only should the premises licence 
not be decided upon in time. 
 
In total I will apply for 5 TENS: 
1 Main arena & evening bar 
2 Small daytime relief bar for main arena 
3 Evening entertainment space (no alcohol service) 
4 VIP guest bar 
5 Small relief bar for paddock 
 
Should the premises licence be granted prior to the event I would withdraw all 5 of these TENs 
applied for. I am the named DPS on the premises license application. 
 
The event organiser and I feel there would be significantly better controls, legal responsibility 
and accountability if the event is controlled under either a premises licence or TEN. The 
alternative if nothing was granted could result in attendees compensating for such services not 
being provided by us and instead doing it through their own means. 
 
There is an event management plan that has been submitted to Winchester Council in 
connection with this event and premises licence application that includes important aspects of 
the licensable activity and bars service. 
In particular: 
Staff handbook for all bar staff, a face to face on the job briefing and written confirmation from 
them that they understand their responsibilities under the licensing act - particularly with respect 
to age verification and intoxication assessment. This will include a written refusal register on 
each bar. 
 
Alan Dove 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



RESTRICTED 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

Before completing this form, please refer to FPP 07001 (Licensing (Licensing Act 2003)) 
 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and wish to make a -objection- under the 
Licensing Act 2003, regarding the: 
 

 

 .1: New Premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

 .2: Variation of premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

  3: Minor variation of premises licence/club prem certificate   Representation within 10 days 

  4: Variation of DPS  Object within 14 days 

  5: Transfer of premises licence  Object within 14 days 

  6: Standard temporary event notice Object within 3 working days 

  7: Late temporary event notice Object with 3 working days  

  8: Application for a personal licence Object within 14 days 

  9: Provisional statement Representation within 28 days 

  10: Ancillary sales notice Object within 3 working days 

  11: Interim authority notice Object within 2 working days 

 
 

Name of Applicant: Mr Alan Dove 

Name of Proposed DPS: NA 

 

Details of relevant conviction ( Personal Licence Applications ONLY) 

NA 

 

Postal address of 
premises: 
 

Matterley Bowl Alresford Road Winchester 

Postcode: SO21 1HW 

 
Details of responsible authority applicant 
 

Mr    Mrs   Miss   Ms   Other title / Rank:  PC 

Surname: Vincent First Names: Peter-James       

Current postal address 
: 

Fareham Police Station 
Quay Street Fareham 

Postcode: PO160NA 

Daytime telephone 
number: 

02380 451304 

E-mail address: 
(optional) 

      

 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and the applicant has the delegated authority of 
the Chief Officer of Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 

Page 61



RESTRICTED 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

 
This application to object relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
                       

1) The prevention of crime and disorder  

Please select 
one or more 
boxes 

2) Public safety  

3) The prevention of public nuisance  

4) The protection of children from harm  

 
 

Please state the ground(s) for -objection-: 

 
The Chief Officer of Police objects to this Temporary Event Notice on the Grounds of Public Safety, 
Crime and Disorder. 
 
This event has taken place at this location for many years and the provision of licensable activity has 
been a significant concern, every year, for police and other responsible authorities. 
 
The event organisers attend the local Safety Advisary Group each year where these concerns are 
raised with little to no effective changes year on year. This has resulted in numerous breaches of 
conditions, failures to promote the licensing objectives and further offences under the Licensing Act 
2003. Each year is like the very first year for an inexperienced operator, however it has been the 
same operator for this lengthy period with no lessons seemingly learned. 
 
The MotoCross aspect of this event is not licensable activity, however the sale of alcohol, late night 
refreshment and regulated entertainment is provided each year and this TEN seeks to authorise 
alcohol sales at the main bar for 2025. 
 
In 2024, the MotoCross of Nations event took place with licensable activity authorised under multiple 
Temporary Event Notices. There were a number of failings, recorded by police, at this event which 
included alleged S136 offences. These failings impacted negatively upon the licensing objectives. 
 
In addition to the failings the event also saw the unfortunate death of a memebr of the public in 
attendance. 
 
Prior to 2017 the licensable activity was authorised on Temporary Event Notices. In 2018, police 
insisted that a premises licence should be in place to ensure robust measures would be required 
under the act by imposing necessary conditions to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
The organiser was informed that police would object to the use of Temporary Event Notices for the 
main licensable activity at this event. Premises Licences were issued for the event in 2018, 
transferred later due to liquidation of the company and then later lapsed due to a further liquidation. 
 
Following the premises licences becoming null and void, the event went ahead with no lawful 
permission for the licensable activity. This was unknown to the authorities at the time but must have 
been known to the licence holder whose company had been liquidated. 
 
Whilst the trading under these premises licences was a positive step to increase the safety of the 
public and prevent crime and disorder, there were a number of breaches of these conditions 
recorded and evidence of a failure to promote the objectives. 
 

Page 62



RESTRICTED 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

In February 2025 police notified the event organiser that TENs were not appropriate for the 
authorisation of this event, which expects 7000-10000 people in attendance. Our experience with the 
operator is that lawful requirements by condition, to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
are necessary and without these the objectives will not be promoted at this event. The organiser was 
informed that police would object to Temporary Event Notices for this event and that a new Premises 
Licence with appropriate conditions would be necessary. 
 
 
 
  

 
It is an offence, under section 158 of the Licensing Act 2003 to make a false statement in or in 

connection with this representation 
 
 

Police recommendations  (including any conditions) 

 
Please issue a counter notice to refuse this TEN. 

 
 
Signature of Officer Completing 
 

Name Peter Vincent Collar Number: 21451 

Signature: PJ Vincent Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

 

 
 
Signature of Authorising Officer 
 

Name PS Rob Cohen Collar Number: 2489 

Signature: Rob Cohen Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 LR598 
 FOR DECISION 
 WARD(S): ALRESFORD AND ITCHEN VALLEY 
 
 
 
LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE 
 
 
Tuesday 3 June 2025 10:00 at The Wykeham Suite, Winchester Wessex 
Hotel, Paternoster Row, Winchester, SO23 9LQ 
 
 
Report of the Service Lead for Public Protection 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    
 
Tel No:   01962 848 188 
Email:   licensing@winchester.gov.uk  
 
 
Application:  Temporary Event Notice (TEN) 
 
Premises: Evening entertainment area at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,  
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
 
 
 
 
Part A. Report         

 
1 Application 
2 Relevant Persons 
3 Observations 
4 Other Considerations 
 

 
Part B. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
Appendix 2 TEN Supporting information  
Appendix 3 Objection from Police 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 6

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk


  

 
Part A. 
 
1. Application 
 
Premises User:   Mr Alan Dove 
 
Premises: Evening entertainment area at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,  
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
1.1 A Temporary Event Notice (“TEN”) pursuant to section 100 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, has been given to the licensing authority for an 
event “MXGP” to take place at Matterley Estate, Winchester.  

 
1.2 The TEN specifies that the event’s location is “Small evening 

entertainment area at 2025 MXGP of Britain 51°02#55#N , 
001°13#40#W OS Grid Ref: SU 54229 27976 This notice applies to the 
space in front of the DJ stand and bounded by crowd control barriers.” 

 
1.3 Licensable activities are proposed to take place on Friday 20 June 2025 

1200 to 0000, Saturday 21 June 2025 0900 to 0000 and Sunday 22 
June 2025 0900 to 2000.  
 

1.4 The TEN specifies the provision of regulated entertainment and 
provision of late night refreshment as the licensable activities. 

 
1.5 The TEN states that no more than 499 people will be on the premises at 

any one time whilst licensable activities are taking place. This includes 
any staff, organisers or performers.  
 

1.6 The TEN was received by the licensing authority on 22 May 2025, which 
is within the required time limits as outlined in section 100(7) of the 
Licensing Act 2003; that is, notice must be given to the licensing 
authority no later than ten working days before the day on which the 
event period begins.  
 

1.7 The TEN, as shown in Appendix 1, details the proposed dates, times 
and licensable activities.  
 

1.8 Temporary Event Notices must be served on both Environmental Health 
and the Police, as Relevant Persons, for consideration. This TEN was 
served on both Relevant Persons by the licensing authority on 23 May 
2025. 
 

1.9 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary made an objection to this 
TEN regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety 
licensing objectives. The objection was received on 27 May 2025, which 
was within the time limits outlined in section 104(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003; that is, no later than the end of the third working day after the 

Page 66



  

police is given a copy of the notice. The objection can be seen in 
Appendix 3.  
 

1.10 Environmental Health made no objection to this TEN. 
 

1.11 The MXGP event organiser, Mr Steve Dixon, has applied to Winchester 
City Council for a New Premises Licence, the consultation period for this 
application ends on 18 June 2025. If this TEN is authorised by the Sub-
Committee and then the Premises Licence is granted in time for the 
event, the TEN would subsequently be withdrawn and the Premises 
Licence used for licensable activities.  
 

1.12 Notices of the Hearing were sent to all Parties on 29 May 2025. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



  

Objections 
 

2. Relevant Persons  
 
Both the Police (Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary) and 
Environmental Health, being the “Relevant Persons” for TEN applications, 
were served with a copy of the notice on 23 May 2025.  No other Responsible 
Authorities are required to be notified of applications under a TEN.  The 
objections received are as follows: 
 
Environmental Health 
 
No objection received. 
 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary 
 
Objection was made by PC Peter-James Vincent of Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Constabulary, who has the delegated authority of the Chief Officer of 
Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
objection has been made regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and 
public safety licensing objectives. The full objection can be seen in Appendix 3. 

Page 68



    

3. Observations 
 
3.1  The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application for an event 

 under a Temporary Event Notice with a view to promoting the Licensing 
 Objectives: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 

 3.2 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have 
 regard to the National Guidance and the Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 
3.3 The Sub-Committee must have regard to all of the objections. 
 
3.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps it considers 
 appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 

1. Acknowledge the Temporary Event Notice in accordance with the 
  application; or 

 
2. Issue a counter notice, which would prevent the event from going 
  ahead under the Temporary Event Notice. 

 
3.5 The Sub-Committee must seek to further the South Downs National 
 Park purposes when considering applications to ensure they are 
 respected. The purposes are:- 
 

(a)  Purpose 1 – to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife 
 and cultural heritage of the area. 
(b)  Purpose 2 – to promote opportunities for the understanding and 
 enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park by the 
 public. 

 
3.6 If there is a conflict between the SDNP purposes, Purpose 1 must have 
 priority. 
 
3.7 Section 11A(1A) of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 

1949 (as amended by Section 245 of the Levelling-Up and Regeneration 
Act 2023) states the following: 

 
 11A Duty of certain bodies and persons in relation to the purposes for 
which National Parks are designated  

 
  (1A) In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 
affect, land in any National Park in England, a relevant authority other 
than a devolved Welsh authority must seek to further the purposes 
specified in section 5(1) and if it appears that there is a conflict between 
those purposes, must attach greater weight to the purpose of conserving 

Page 69



    

and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the 
area comprised in the National Park. 

 
3.8 On 16 December 2024, Guidance for relevant authorities on seeking to 

further the purposes of Protected Landscapes was published. This 
guidance states that ‘the duty is an active duty, not passive’. The 
following are applicable excerpts of what this means to relevant 
authorities: 
 

• a relevant authority should take appropriate, reasonable, and 
proportionate steps to explore measures which further the 
statutory purposes of Protected Landscapes 

• as far as is reasonably practical, relevant authorities should seek 
to avoid harm and contribute to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural beauty, special qualities, and key 
characteristics of Protected Landscapes 

 
 
Terminal hours 
 
The Sub-Committee should take account of the National Guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy with regard to terminal hours and take such steps 
as it considers appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, A8) 
 
Licensing Objectives 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for crime and public 
disorder relating to the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy 1.9, 2.11, 2.17 and Part 4 Section A) 
 
Public Safety 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns over public safety relating 
to the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, B2, B3) 
 
Public Nuisance 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for public nuisance caused 
by noise pollution from the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, Section C) 

Page 70

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes


    

 
Protection of Children 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns relating to the protection of 
children on the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, D6, D7) 
 
Human Rights  
 
It is considered that Articles 6 (right to a fair trial) 8 (right to respect for private 
and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceable enjoyment 
of possessions) may be relevant. As there is a right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court, it is considered that there would be no infringement of 
Article 6. Article 8 is relevant, insofar as the nearby residents could claim that 
this right would be infringed by disturbance from customers. This should be 
balanced against the applicants’ right to use of their premises under Article 1 
of the First Protocol. Interference with these rights is permitted, where this 
interference is lawful, appropriate in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
Likewise, the residents may argue that their rights under Article 1 of the First 
Protocol would be infringed.  To the extent that any interference may occur, it 
would be justifiable in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
The Public Sector equality duty must be taken in to consideration with all 
decision making. The duty is stated in section 149 of The Equality Act 2010. 
This application raises no considerations under the Act.  
 
  
 

Page 71



 

4. Other Considerations 
 
Council Strategy Outcome (Relevance To:) 
 
This report relates to the ‘Vibrant Local Economy’ priority by working with 
partners and using powers available to us to make Winchester a safe and 
pleasant place to live, work and visit. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
A statutory fee of £21.00 has been received. The fee covers the administration 
of the TEN and does not include the costs of holding a Sub-Committee hearing 
and associated administration.  
 
Appendices 
 
1. Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
 
2. TEN supporting document 

 
3. Objection from police 

Page 72



 Winchester City Council
City Offices, Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ
T: 01962 840 222
E: licensing@winchester.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1747925890636

 

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User

Your Name (please read note 1)

Title * Mr

First Name * Alan

Surname * Dove

Have you been known by any previous names, including a 
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User

Date of Birth *

Place of Birth *

National Insurance Number *

Current Address

We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence 
address.

Street Address *

Town/City *

Postcode *

 1 / 6

Page 73



Ref: DSFX1747925890636

Current Address

Daytime Telephone Number *

Evening Telephone Number

Mobile Telephone Number

Fax Number

Email Address *

Do you have an alternative correspondence address you 
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises

Premises Address
MATTERLEY BOWL ALRESFORD ROAD WINCHESTER 
HAMPSHIRE SO21 1HW

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have 
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises? 
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number 
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

No - Neither

Premises

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address 
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, 
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

Small evening entertainment area at 2025 MXGP of Britain 
51°02#55#N , 001°13#40#W OS Grid Ref: SU 54229 27976 
This notice applies to the space in front of the DJ stand and 
bounded by crowd control barriers.

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read 
note 4) *

DJ stand with small sound system providing entertainment to 
200 to 300 poeople.

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5) 
*

The event is a motor sports event during the daytime, and in 
the evening there is small entertainment area for people who 
normally camp nearby to the event.

Licensable Activities

 2 / 6

Page 74



Ref: DSFX1747925890636

Licensable Activities

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you 
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

 
The sale by retail of alcohol

 
The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

 
✓ The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

 
✓ The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read 
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these 
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start 
Date

20/06/2025

End Date 22/06/2025

Please state the times during the event period that you 
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in 
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

20.6.2025, 12:00 until 24:00 21.6.2025, 09:00 until 24:00 
22.6.2025, 09:00 until 20:00

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time 
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during 
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities, 
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read 
note 11) *

499

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of 
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption 
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

No alcohol supplied

Please state if the licensable activities will include the 
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the 
times during the event period that you propose to provide 
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap 
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

20.6.2025, 12:00 until 24:00 21.6.2025, 09:00 until 24:00 
22.6.2025, 09:00 until 20:00

Personal Licence Holder

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read 
note 14)*

Yes

 3 / 6

Page 75



Ref: DSFX1747925890636

Personal Licence Details

Issuing Licensing Authority * Poole

Licence number * BOP_M00382

Date of issue * 24/11/2005

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you previously given a temporary event notice in 
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same 
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this 
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

Yes

Previous Event Notice

Please state the number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) 
you have given for events in that same calendar year. *

9

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the 
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24 
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event 
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice 
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which 
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read 
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event 
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a) 
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less 
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

 4 / 6

Page 76



Ref: DSFX1747925890636

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an 
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you 
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

Yes

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice 
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24 
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the 
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration

Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required 
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the 
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this 
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of 
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are 
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send 
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I 
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of 
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i) 
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is 
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity 
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount, 
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.

Name of Person Signing * Alan Dove

Date * 22/05/2025

 
✓ Declaration Made

Email confirmation

On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below

Forename Alan

 5 / 6

Page 77



Ref: DSFX1747925890636

Email confirmation

Surname /Company Name Dove

Email *

Telephone

 6 / 6

Page 78



MXGP of Great Britain 
 
This is the British round of the Motocross Grand Prix and should not be confused with another 
larger event that is called MXON - Motocross of Nations. It was last held at this location in June 
2024. 
 
The event organiser (Steve Dixon) has been asked by Hampshire Police to apply for a premises 
licence for this event, which he has done and it is currently being considered by Winchester City 
Council. The application for the premises licence has a significant risk of not being decided in 
time for the 2025 event on 20-22 June 2025, but would be applicable for future years. 
 
To try and alleviate the risk of the event taking place without any licensable activity I have 
applied for this temporary event notice (alongside 4 others) for individual smaller aspects of the 
premises licence applied for, for 2025 only. These TEN’s effectively try and act as a backstop to 
allow more limited licensable activity to take place for 1 year only should the premises licence 
not be decided upon in time. 
 
In total I will apply for 5 TENS: 
1 Main arena & evening bar 
2 Small daytime relief bar for main arena 
3 Evening entertainment space (no alcohol service) 
4 VIP guest bar 
5 Small relief bar for paddock 
 
Should the premises licence be granted prior to the event I would withdraw all 5 of these TENs 
applied for. I am the named DPS on the premises license application. 
 
The event organiser and I feel there would be significantly better controls, legal responsibility 
and accountability if the event is controlled under either a premises licence or TEN. The 
alternative if nothing was granted could result in attendees compensating for such services not 
being provided by us and instead doing it through their own means. 
 
There is an event management plan that has been submitted to Winchester Council in 
connection with this event and premises licence application that includes important aspects of 
the licensable activity and bars service. 
In particular: 
Staff handbook for all bar staff, a face to face on the job briefing and written confirmation from 
them that they understand their responsibilities under the licensing act - particularly with respect 
to age verification and intoxication assessment. This will include a written refusal register on 
each bar. 
 
Alan Dove 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



RESTRICTED 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

Before completing this form, please refer to FPP 07001 (Licensing (Licensing Act 2003)) 
 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and wish to make a -objection- under the 
Licensing Act 2003, regarding the: 
 

 

 .1: New Premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

 .2: Variation of premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

  3: Minor variation of premises licence/club prem certificate   Representation within 10 days 

  4: Variation of DPS  Object within 14 days 

  5: Transfer of premises licence  Object within 14 days 

  6: Standard temporary event notice Object within 3 working days 

  7: Late temporary event notice Object with 3 working days  

  8: Application for a personal licence Object within 14 days 

  9: Provisional statement Representation within 28 days 

  10: Ancillary sales notice Object within 3 working days 

  11: Interim authority notice Object within 2 working days 

 
 

Name of Applicant: Mr Alan Dove 

Name of Proposed DPS: NA 

 

Details of relevant conviction ( Personal Licence Applications ONLY) 

NA 

 

Postal address of 
premises: 
 

Matterley Bowl Alresford Road Winchester 

Postcode: SO21 1HW 

 
Details of responsible authority applicant 
 

Mr    Mrs   Miss   Ms   Other title / Rank:  PC 

Surname: Vincent First Names: Peter-James       

Current postal address 
: 

Fareham Police Station 
Quay Street Fareham 

Postcode: PO160NA 

Daytime telephone 
number: 

02380 451304 

E-mail address: 
(optional) 

      

 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and the applicant has the delegated authority of 
the Chief Officer of Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 

Page 81



RESTRICTED 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

 
This application to object relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
                       

1) The prevention of crime and disorder  

Please select 
one or more 
boxes 

2) Public safety  

3) The prevention of public nuisance  

4) The protection of children from harm  

 
 

Please state the ground(s) for -objection-: 

 
The Chief Officer of Police objects to this Temporary Event Notice on the Grounds of Public Safety, 
Crime and Disorder. 
 
This event has taken place at this location for many years and the provision of licensable activity has 
been a significant concern, every year, for police and other responsible authorities. 
 
The event organisers attend the local Safety Advisary Group each year where these concerns are 
raised with little to no effective changes year on year. This has resulted in numerous breaches of 
conditions, failures to promote the licensing objectives and further offences under the Licensing Act 
2003. Each year is like the very first year for an inexperienced operator, however it has been the 
same operator for this lengthy period with no lessons seemingly learned. 
 
The MotoCross aspect of this event is not licensable activity, however the sale of alcohol, late night 
refreshment and regulated entertainment is provided each year and this TEN seeks to authorise 
alcohol sales at the main bar for 2025. 
 
In 2024, the MotoCross of Nations event took place with licensable activity authorised under multiple 
Temporary Event Notices. There were a number of failings, recorded by police, at this event which 
included alleged S136 offences. These failings impacted negatively upon the licensing objectives. 
 
In addition to the failings the event also saw the unfortunate death of a memebr of the public in 
attendance. 
 
Prior to 2017 the licensable activity was authorised on Temporary Event Notices. In 2018, police 
insisted that a premises licence should be in place to ensure robust measures would be required 
under the act by imposing necessary conditions to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
The organiser was informed that police would object to the use of Temporary Event Notices for the 
main licensable activity at this event. Premises Licences were issued for the event in 2018, 
transferred later due to liquidation of the company and then later lapsed due to a further liquidation. 
 
Following the premises licences becoming null and void, the event went ahead with no lawful 
permission for the licensable activity. This was unknown to the authorities at the time but must have 
been known to the licence holder whose company had been liquidated. 
 
Whilst the trading under these premises licences was a positive step to increase the safety of the 
public and prevent crime and disorder, there were a number of breaches of these conditions 
recorded and evidence of a failure to promote the objectives. 
 

Page 82



RESTRICTED 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

In February 2025 police notified the event organiser that TENs were not appropriate for the 
authorisation of this event, which expects 7000-10000 people in attendance. Our experience with the 
operator is that lawful requirements by condition, to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
are necessary and without these the objectives will not be promoted at this event. The organiser was 
informed that police would object to Temporary Event Notices for this event and that a new Premises 
Licence with appropriate conditions would be necessary. 
 
 
 
  

 
It is an offence, under section 158 of the Licensing Act 2003 to make a false statement in or in 

connection with this representation 
 
 

Police recommendations  (including any conditions) 

 
Please issue a counter notice to refuse this TEN. 

 
 
Signature of Officer Completing 
 

Name PC Peter Vincent Collar Number: 21451 

Signature: PJ Vincent Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

 

 
 
Signature of Authorising Officer 
 

Name PS Rob Cohen Collar Number: 2489 

Signature: Rob Cohen Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 LR599 
 FOR DECISION 
 WARD(S): ALRESFORD AND ITCHEN VALLEY 
 
 
 
LICENSING SUB – COMMITTEE 
 
 
Tuesday 3 June 2025 10:00 at The Wykeham Suite, Winchester Wessex 
Hotel, Paternoster Row, Winchester, SO23 9LQ 
 
 
Report of the Service Lead for Public Protection 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    
 
Tel No:   01962 848 188 
Email:   licensing@winchester.gov.uk  
 
 
Application:  Temporary Event Notice (TEN) 
 
Premises: VIP Hospitality marquee at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,   
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
 
 
 
 
Part A. Report         

 
1 Application 
2 Relevant Persons 
3 Observations 
4 Other Considerations 
 

 
Part B. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
Appendix 2 TEN Supporting information  
Appendix 3 Objection from Police 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7

mailto:licensing@winchester.gov.uk


  

 
Part A. 
 
1. Application 
 
Premises User:   Mr Alan Dove 
 
Premises: VIP Hospitality marquee at MXGP, Matterley Bowl,   
  Alresford Road, Winchester 
 
1.1 A Temporary Event Notice (“TEN”) pursuant to section 100 of the 

Licensing Act 2003, has been given to the licensing authority for an 
event “MXGP” to take place at Matterley Estate, Winchester.  

 
1.2 The TEN specifies that the event’s location is “VIP hospitality marquee. 

Location 51°02#52#N , 001°13#59#W SU 53861 27879 Marquee for 
VIP and invited guests only.” 

 
1.3 Licensable activities are proposed to take place on Friday 20 June 2025 

0900 to 0000, Saturday 21 June 2025 0900 to 0000 and Sunday 22 
June 2025 0900 to 2200.  
 

1.4 The TEN specifies the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption on and 
off the premises), the provision of regulated entertainment and provision 
of late night refreshment as the licensable activities. 

 
1.5 The TEN states that no more than 499 people will be on the premises at 

any one time whilst licensable activities are taking place. This includes 
any staff, organisers or performers.  
 

1.6 The TEN was received by the licensing authority on 22 May 2025, which 
is within the required time limits as outlined in section 100(7) of the 
Licensing Act 2003; that is, notice must be given to the licensing 
authority no later than ten working days before the day on which the 
event period begins.  
 

1.7 The TEN, as shown in Appendix 1, details the proposed dates, times 
and licensable activities.  
 

1.8 Temporary Event Notices must be served on both Environmental Health 
and the Police, as Relevant Persons, for consideration. This TEN was 
served on both Relevant Persons by the licensing authority on 23 May 
2025. 
 

1.9 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary made an objection to this 
TEN regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety 
licensing objectives. The objection was received on 27 May 2025, which 
was within the time limits outlined in section 104(3) of the Licensing Act 
2003; that is, no later than the end of the third working day after the 

Page 86



  

police is given a copy of the notice. The objection can be seen in 
Appendix 3.  
 

1.10 Environmental Health made no objection to this TEN. 
 

1.11 The MXGP event organiser, Mr Steve Dixon, has applied to Winchester 
City Council for a New Premises Licence, the consultation period for this 
application ends on 18 June 2025. If this TEN is authorised by the Sub-
Committee and then the Premises Licence is granted in time for the 
event, the TEN would subsequently be withdrawn and the Premises 
Licence used for licensable activities.  
 

1.12 Notices of the Hearing were sent to all Parties on 29 May 2025. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



  

Objections 
 

2. Relevant Persons  
 
Both the Police (Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary) and 
Environmental Health, being the “Relevant Persons” for TEN applications, 
were served with a copy of the notice on 23 May 2025.  No other Responsible 
Authorities are required to be notified of applications under a TEN.  The 
objections received are as follows: 
 
Environmental Health 
 
No objection received. 
 
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Constabulary 
 
Objection was made by PC Peter-James Vincent of Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Constabulary, who has the delegated authority of the Chief Officer of 
Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
objection has been made regarding the prevention of crime and disorder and 
public safety licensing objectives. The full objection can be seen in Appendix 3. 

Page 88



    

3. Observations 
 
3.1  The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application for an event 

 under a Temporary Event Notice with a view to promoting the Licensing 
 Objectives: 

 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 

 3.2 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is also obliged to have 
 regard to the National Guidance and the Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 
3.3 The Sub-Committee must have regard to all of the objections. 
 
3.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps it considers 
 appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 

1. Acknowledge the Temporary Event Notice in accordance with the 
  application; or 

 
2. Issue a counter notice, which would prevent the event from going 
  ahead under the Temporary Event Notice. 

 
3.5 The Sub-Committee must seek to further the South Downs National 
 Park purposes when considering applications to ensure they are 
 respected. The purposes are:- 
 

(a)  Purpose 1 – to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife 
 and cultural heritage of the area. 
(b)  Purpose 2 – to promote opportunities for the understanding and 
 enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park by the 
 public. 

 
3.6 If there is a conflict between the SDNP purposes, Purpose 1 must have 
 priority. 
 
3.7 Section 11A(1A) of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 

1949 (as amended by Section 245 of the Levelling-Up and Regeneration 
Act 2023) states the following: 

 
 11A Duty of certain bodies and persons in relation to the purposes for 
which National Parks are designated  

 
  (1A) In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to 
affect, land in any National Park in England, a relevant authority other 
than a devolved Welsh authority must seek to further the purposes 
specified in section 5(1) and if it appears that there is a conflict between 
those purposes, must attach greater weight to the purpose of conserving 

Page 89



    

and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the 
area comprised in the National Park. 

 
3.8 On 16 December 2024, Guidance for relevant authorities on seeking to 

further the purposes of Protected Landscapes was published. This 
guidance states that ‘the duty is an active duty, not passive’. The 
following are applicable excerpts of what this means to relevant 
authorities: 
 

• a relevant authority should take appropriate, reasonable, and 
proportionate steps to explore measures which further the 
statutory purposes of Protected Landscapes 

• as far as is reasonably practical, relevant authorities should seek 
to avoid harm and contribute to the conservation and 
enhancement of the natural beauty, special qualities, and key 
characteristics of Protected Landscapes 

 
 
Terminal hours 
 
The Sub-Committee should take account of the National Guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy with regard to terminal hours and take such steps 
as it considers appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, A8) 
 
Licensing Objectives 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for crime and public 
disorder relating to the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy 1.9, 2.11, 2.17 and Part 4 Section A) 
 
Public Safety 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns over public safety relating 
to the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, B2, B3) 
 
Public Nuisance 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider the potential for public nuisance caused 
by noise pollution from the premises having regard to the notice and the 
objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, Section C) 

Page 90

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-protected-landscapes-duty/guidance-for-relevant-authorities-on-seeking-to-further-the-purposes-of-protected-landscapes#statutory-purposes-of-protected-landscapes


    

 
Protection of Children 
 
The Sub-Committee should consider any concerns relating to the protection of 
children on the premises having regard to the notice and the objections. 
 
(Licensing Policy Part 4, D6, D7) 
 
Human Rights  
 
It is considered that Articles 6 (right to a fair trial) 8 (right to respect for private 
and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to peaceable enjoyment 
of possessions) may be relevant. As there is a right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court, it is considered that there would be no infringement of 
Article 6. Article 8 is relevant, insofar as the nearby residents could claim that 
this right would be infringed by disturbance from customers. This should be 
balanced against the applicants’ right to use of their premises under Article 1 
of the First Protocol. Interference with these rights is permitted, where this 
interference is lawful, appropriate in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
Likewise, the residents may argue that their rights under Article 1 of the First 
Protocol would be infringed.  To the extent that any interference may occur, it 
would be justifiable in a democratic society, and proportionate. 
 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
 
The Public Sector equality duty must be taken in to consideration with all 
decision making. The duty is stated in section 149 of The Equality Act 2010. 
This application raises no considerations under the Act.  
 
  
 

Page 91



 

4. Other Considerations 
 
Council Strategy Outcome (Relevance To:) 
 
This report relates to the ‘Vibrant Local Economy’ priority by working with 
partners and using powers available to us to make Winchester a safe and 
pleasant place to live, work and visit. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
A statutory fee of £21.00 has been received. The fee covers the administration 
of the TEN and does not include the costs of holding a Sub-Committee hearing 
and associated administration.  
 
Appendices 
 
1. Temporary Event Notice given by Mr Alan Dove 
 
2. TEN supporting document 

 
3. Objection from police 

Page 92



 Winchester City Council
City Offices, Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ
T: 01962 840 222
E: licensing@winchester.gov.uk

Ref: DSFX1747926888245

 

Temporary Event Notice

Personal Details of Premises User

Your Name (please read note 1)

Title * Mr

First Name * Alan

Surname * Dove

Have you been known by any previous names, including a 
maiden name? *

No

Personal Details of Premises User

Date of Birth *

Place of Birth *

National Insurance Number *

Current Address

We will use this address and contact details to correspond with you unless you specify an alternative correspondence 
address.

Street Address *

Town/City *

Postcode *

 1 / 6

Page 93



Ref: DSFX1747926888245

Current Address

Daytime Telephone Number *

Evening Telephone Number

Mobile Telephone Number

Fax Number

Email Address *

Do you have an alternative correspondence address you 
would like us to use? *

No

The Premises

Premises Address
MATTERLEY BOWL ALRESFORD ROAD WINCHESTER 
HAMPSHIRE SO21 1HW

Does a premises licence or club premises certificate have 
effect in relation to the premises, or any part of the premises? 
If so, please select and enter the Premises Licence Number 
or Club Premises Certificate Number.*

No - Neither

Premises

If you intend to use only part of the premises at this address 
or intend to restrict the area to which this notice applies, 
please give a description and details. (Please read note 3)

VIP hospitality marquee. Location 51°02#52#N , 
001°13#59#W SU 53861 27879 Marquee for VIP and invited 
guests only.

Please describe the nature of the premises. (Please read 
note 4) *

Marquee with furniture, bar and music.

Please describe the nature of the event. (Please read note 5) 
*

The event is a motor sports event and this space is a 
trackside hospitality space to watch the racing for invited 
guests only.

Licensable Activities

Please state the licensable activities that you intend to carry on at the premises (please tick all licensable activities you 
intend to carry on). (Please read note 6) * More than one can be selected.

 2 / 6

Page 94



Ref: DSFX1747926888245

Licensable Activities
 

✓ The sale by retail of alcohol

 
The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club

 
✓ The provision of regulated entertainment (Please read note 7)

 
✓ The provision of late night refreshment

Are you giving a late temporary event notice? (Please read 
note 8) *

No

Please state the dates on which you intend to use these 
premises for licensable activities (Please read note 9). * Start 
Date

20/06/2025

End Date 22/06/2025

Please state the times during the event period that you 
propose to carry on licensable activities (please give times in 
24 hour clock). (Please read note 10) *

20.6.2025, 09:00 until 24:00 21.6.2025, 09:00 until 24.00 
22.6.2025, 09:00 until 22:00

Please state the maximum number of people at any one time 
that you intend to allow to be present at the premises during 
the times when you intend to carry on licensable activities, 
including any staff, organisers or performers. (Please read 
note 11) *

499

If the licensable activities will include the sale or supply of 
alcohol, please state whether these will be for consumption 
on or off the premises, or both (please read note 12). *

Both

Please state if the licensable activities will include the 
provision of relevant entertainment. If so, please state the 
times during the event period that you propose to provide 
relevant entertainment (including, but not limited to lap 
dancing and pole dancing). (Please read note 13) *

20.6.2025, 09:00 until 24:00 21.6.2025, 09:00 until 24.00 
22.6.2025, 09:00 until 22:00

Personal Licence Holder

Do you currently hold a valid personal licence? (please read 
note 14)*

Yes

Personal Licence Details

Issuing Licensing Authority * Poole

 3 / 6

Page 95



Ref: DSFX1747926888245

Personal Licence Details

Licence number * BOP_M00382

Date of issue * 24/11/2005

Please provide any further details you think may be relevant.

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you previously given a temporary event notice in 
respect of any premises, for events falling in the same 
calendar year as the event for which you are now giving this 
temporary event notice? (please read note 15) *

Yes

Previous Event Notice

Please state the number of temporary event notices 
(including the number of late temporary event notices, if any) 
you have given for events in that same calendar year. *

10

Previous Temporary Event Notices

Have you already given a temporary event notice for the 
same premises in which the event period either; ends 24 
hours or less before begins 24 hours or less after the event 
period proposed in this notice? *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours given a temporary event notice 
for an event in the same calendar year as the event for which 
you are now giving a temporary event notice? (please read 
note 16) *

No

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any associate of yours already given a temporary event 
notice for the same premises in which the event period; a) 
ends 24 hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less 
after the event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities given a temporary event notice for an Yes

 4 / 6

Page 96



Ref: DSFX1747926888245

Associates and Business Colleagues
event in the same calendar year as the event for which you 
are now giving a temporary event notice? *

Associates and Business Colleagues

Has any person with whom you are in business carrying on 
licensable activities already given a temporary event notice 
for the same premises in which the event period: a) ends 24 
hours or less before; or b) begins 24 hours or less after the 
event period proposed in this notice? *

No

Declaration

Please ensure you submit all the information required to support your proposal. Failure to submit all the information required 
could result in your notice being deemed invalid. It will not be considered valid until all the information required by the 
licensing authority has been submitted. Please read guidance note 17 for further information. I understand that a copy of this 
notice will be sent to the chief officer of police for the area in which the premises are situated. I understand that a copy of 
this notice will be sent to the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the premises are 
situated. If the premises are situated in one or more licensing authority areas, I understand that the issuing authority will send 
at least one copy of this notice to each additional licensing authority. If the premises are situated in one or more police areas, I 
understand that the issuing authority will send a copy of this notice to each additional chief officer of police.

It is a condition of this temporary event notice that where the relevant licensable activities described include the supply of 
alcohol that all such supplies are made by or under the authority of the premises user. (please read note 18)

The information contained in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that it is an offence: (i) 
to knowingly or recklessly make a false statement in or in connection with this temporary event notice and that a person is 
liable on summary conviction for such an offence to a fine of any amount; and (ii) to permit an unauthorised licensable activity 
to be carried on at any place and that a person is liable on summary conviction for any such offence to a fine of any amount, 
or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months, or to both.

Name of Person Signing * Alan Dove

Date * 22/05/2025

 
✓ Declaration Made

Email confirmation

On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below

Forename Alan

Surname /Company Name Dove

 5 / 6

Page 97



Ref: DSFX1747926888245

Email confirmation

Email *

Telephone

 6 / 6

Page 98



MXGP of Great Britain 
 
This is the British round of the Motocross Grand Prix and should not be confused with another 
larger event that is called MXON - Motocross of Nations. It was last held at this location in June 
2024. 
 
The event organiser (Steve Dixon) has been asked by Hampshire Police to apply for a premises 
licence for this event, which he has done and it is currently being considered by Winchester City 
Council. The application for the premises licence has a significant risk of not being decided in 
time for the 2025 event on 20-22 June 2025, but would be applicable for future years. 
 
To try and alleviate the risk of the event taking place without any licensable activity I have 
applied for this temporary event notice (alongside 4 others) for individual smaller aspects of the 
premises licence applied for, for 2025 only. These TEN’s effectively try and act as a backstop to 
allow more limited licensable activity to take place for 1 year only should the premises licence 
not be decided upon in time. 
 
In total I will apply for 5 TENS: 
1 Main arena & evening bar 
2 Small daytime relief bar for main arena 
3 Evening entertainment space (no alcohol service) 
4 VIP guest bar 
5 Small relief bar for paddock 
 
Should the premises licence be granted prior to the event I would withdraw all 5 of these TENs 
applied for. I am the named DPS on the premises license application. 
 
The event organiser and I feel there would be significantly better controls, legal responsibility 
and accountability if the event is controlled under either a premises licence or TEN. The 
alternative if nothing was granted could result in attendees compensating for such services not 
being provided by us and instead doing it through their own means. 
 
There is an event management plan that has been submitted to Winchester Council in 
connection with this event and premises licence application that includes important aspects of 
the licensable activity and bars service. 
In particular: 
Staff handbook for all bar staff, a face to face on the job briefing and written confirmation from 
them that they understand their responsibilities under the licensing act - particularly with respect 
to age verification and intoxication assessment. This will include a written refusal register on 
each bar. 
 
Alan Dove 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



RESTRICTED 
Page 1 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

Before completing this form, please refer to FPP 07001 (Licensing (Licensing Act 2003)) 
 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and wish to make a -objection- under the 
Licensing Act 2003, regarding the: 
 

 

 .1: New Premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

 .2: Variation of premises licence/club prem certificate Representation within 28 days 

  3: Minor variation of premises licence/club prem certificate   Representation within 10 days 

  4: Variation of DPS  Object within 14 days 

  5: Transfer of premises licence  Object within 14 days 

  6: Standard temporary event notice Object within 3 working days 

  7: Late temporary event notice Object with 3 working days  

  8: Application for a personal licence Object within 14 days 

  9: Provisional statement Representation within 28 days 

  10: Ancillary sales notice Object within 3 working days 

  11: Interim authority notice Object within 2 working days 

 
 

Name of Applicant: Mr Alan Dove 

Name of Proposed DPS: NA 

 

Details of relevant conviction ( Personal Licence Applications ONLY) 

NA 

 

Postal address of 
premises: 
 

Matterley Bowl Alresford Road Winchester 

Postcode: SO21 1HW 

 
Details of responsible authority applicant 
 

Mr    Mrs   Miss   Ms   Other title / Rank:  PC  

Surname: Vincent First Names: Peter-James       

Current postal address 
: 

Fareham Police Station 
Quay Street Fareham 

Postcode: PO160NA 

Daytime telephone 
number: 

02380 451304 

E-mail address: 
(optional) 

      

 
Hampshire Constabulary is a responsible authority and the applicant has the delegated authority of 
the Chief Officer of Police in respect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 

Page 101



RESTRICTED 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

 
This application to object relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
                       

1) The prevention of crime and disorder  

Please select 
one or more 
boxes 

2) Public safety  

3) The prevention of public nuisance  

4) The protection of children from harm  

 
 

Please state the ground(s) for -objection-: 

 
The Chief Officer of Police objects to this Temporary Event Notice on the Grounds of Public Safety, 
Crime and Disorder. 
 
This event has taken place at this location for many years and the provision of licensable activity has 
been a significant concern, every year, for police and other responsible authorities. 
 
The event organisers attend the local Safety Advisary Group each year where these concerns are 
raised with little to no effective changes year on year. This has resulted in numerous breaches of 
conditions, failures to promote the licensing objectives and further offences under the Licensing Act 
2003. Each year is like the very first year for an inexperienced operator, however it has been the 
same operator for this lengthy period with no lessons seemingly learned. 
 
The MotoCross aspect of this event is not licensable activity, however the sale of alcohol, late night 
refreshment and regulated entertainment is provided each year and this TEN seeks to authorise 
alcohol sales at the main bar for 2025. 
 
In 2024, the MotoCross of Nations event took place with licensable activity authorised under multiple 
Temporary Event Notices. There were a number of failings, recorded by police, at this event which 
included alleged S136 offences. These failings impacted negatively upon the licensing objectives. 
 
In addition to the failings the event also saw the unfortunate death of a memebr of the public in 
attendance. 
 
Prior to 2017 the licensable activity was authorised on Temporary Event Notices. In 2018, police 
insisted that a premises licence should be in place to ensure robust measures would be required 
under the act by imposing necessary conditions to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
The organiser was informed that police would object to the use of Temporary Event Notices for the 
main licensable activity at this event. Premises Licences were issued for the event in 2018, 
transferred later due to liquidation of the company and then later lapsed due to a further liquidation. 
 
Following the premises licences becoming null and void, the event went ahead with no lawful 
permission for the licensable activity. This was unknown to the authorities at the time but must have 
been known to the licence holder whose company had been liquidated. 
 
Whilst the trading under these premises licences was a positive step to increase the safety of the 
public and prevent crime and disorder, there were a number of breaches of these conditions 
recorded and evidence of a failure to promote the objectives. 
 

Page 102



RESTRICTED 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Form for representations/objections 
 from Hampshire Constabulary 

 

RESTRICTED 
 

 

G89 

In February 2025 police notified the event organiser that TENs were not appropriate for the 
authorisation of this event, which expects 7000-10000 people in attendance. Our experience with the 
operator is that lawful requirements by condition, to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
are necessary and without these the objectives will not be promoted at this event. The organiser was 
informed that police would object to Temporary Event Notices for this event and that a new Premises 
Licence with appropriate conditions would be necessary. 
 
 
 
  

 
It is an offence, under section 158 of the Licensing Act 2003 to make a false statement in or in 

connection with this representation 
 
 

Police recommendations  (including any conditions) 

 
Please issue a counter notice to refuse this TEN. 

 
 
Signature of Officer Completing 
 

Name Peter Vincent Collar Number: 21451 

Signature: PJ Vincent Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

 

 
 
Signature of Authorising Officer 
 

Name PS Rob Cohen Collar Number: 2489 

Signature: Rob Cohen Date: 27/05/2025 

 

 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Temporary Event Notice for Main beer tent at MXGP, Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road Winchester (Report LR595)
	LR595 Appendix 1 TEN_Redacted
	LR595 Appendix 2 TEN supporting document
	LR595 Appendix 3 Police objection

	4 Temporary Event Notice for Event arena daytime relief bar at MXGP, Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR596)
	LR596 Appendix 1 TEN_redacted
	LR596 Appendix 2 TEN supporting document
	LR595 Appendix 3 Police objection

	5 Temporary Event Notice for Relief bar in paddock area, Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR597)
	LR597 Appendix 1 TEN_Redacted
	LR597 Appendix 2 TEN supporting document
	LR597 Appendix 3 police objection

	6 Temporary Event Notice for Evening entertainment area Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR598)
	LR598 Appendix 1 TEN_redacted
	LR598 Appendix 2 TEN supporting document
	LR598 Appendix 3 police objection

	7 Temporary Event Notice for VIP Hospitality Marquee, Matterley Bowl, Alresford Road, Winchester (Report LR599)
	LR599 Appendix 1 TEN_Redacted
	LR599 Appendix 2 TEN supporting document
	LR599 Appendix 3 police objection




